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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COU/RT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF T E ~ S  

2 ".*>. i * ' 7 ' ' T ' '  L u r . i t . t \ S  

FILED 

DALLAS DIVISION Ii 
I 

-

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 
i
i 

XRK, [J.S. DISTRICTCOURT 
: I \  

I1 
i i , cpvry  

Plaintiff, 
. ..1 

VS. Civil Action No. 

PREMIUM INCOME CORP., INFOREX, LTD., 
TRI-FOREX INTERNATIONAL, LTD. 
also known as TRI-FOREX, LTD. and 

w 05 1 3  .!\ 
* 

Ib f  
. 

"*; 
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1. I; 

INTERNATIONAL FOREX COMPANY, 
GERALD LEO ROGERS also known as 
JAY ROGERS and JAY RODGERS, and 
ALEXANDER IGOR SHEVCHENKO, 

Defendants, 

COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission alleges as follows: 

SUMMARY 

1. Since at least January 2004 to the present, the Defendants have engaged in 

an unregistered and fraudulent securities offering involving the purported trading of 

foreign currencies. Through their fraudulent conduct, the Defendants have raised at least 

$8.5 million from at least 100 investors, most of whom are Texas residents. 

2. The scheme has been orchestrated by Gerald Leo Rogers, a twice-

convicted felon, whose criminal and securities fraud history spans nearly four decades. 

His fraudulent conduct in this matter, which started immediately after his parole from a 

25-year prison sentence, targets retired and older investors with promises of "guaranteed 

profits" and "safety of principal." 



3. The representations and promises made to investors are false. In reality, 

Rogers is operating a "ponzi" scheme; investors' hnds  have not been used to trade 

foreign currency options, as promised. Rogers and Shevchenko control all of the 

accounts into which investor funds are deposited, and Rogers has transferred nearly $7 

million to offshore bank accounts. 

4. In addition to making false representations to investors concerning the 

nature of the investment and the use of investor funds, the Defendants have failed to 

disclose Rogers' criminal and securities fraud history to investors. 

5. The Commission, in the interest of protecting the public from further 

fraudulent activities, brings this action seeking an order permanently enjoining the 

Defendants from further violations of Sections 5(a), 5(c) and 17(a) of the Securities Act 

of 1933 [15 U.S.C. 5s 77e(a), 77e(c) and 77q(a)] ("Securities Act") and Section 10(b) of 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 [15 U.S.C. 5 78j(b)] ("Exchange Act"), and Rule 

lob-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. 5 240.10b-51. The Commission also seeks an order requiring 

the Defendants to disgorge all ill-gotten gains, plus prejudgment interest thereon, and to 

pay civil monetary penalties. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

6. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 22(a) of the 

Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77v(a)] and Section 27 of the Exchange Act [I5 U.S.C. 3 

78aal. Defendants have, directly and indirectly, made use of the means or 

instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or the mails in connection with the 

transactions described in this Complaint. 
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7.  Venue lies in this Court pursuant to Section 22(a) of the Securities Act [15 

U.S.C. 5 77v(a)] and Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 5 78aa], because certain 

of the acts and transactions described herein took place in the Northern District of Texas. 

DEFENDANTS 

8. Gerald Leo Rogers aka, Jay Rogers, Jay Kellum, Jerald Rogers Kingston, 

Gerald Lee Rogers and Roger Charles Gillam, age 69, of Seattle Washington, is the 

mastermind of the fraudulent scheme described herein. Rogers has a securities fraud and 

criminal history that spans nearly four decades. Rogers is the subject of multiple criminal 

fraud convictions, federal civil injunctions and state cease and desist orders. Rogers 

created the PIC investment program within months after his release from prison in 

Arizona. Rogers is variously referred to as the CEO, Secretary and Treasurer of PIC. 

Rogers claims to have been affiliated with Defendant Tri-Forex International, Ltd. ("Tri- 

Forex") for 19 years. Rogers also purports to personally manage all accounts greater than 

$1 million. 

9. Alexander Igor Shevchenko, age 64, of Shoreline Washington, is a co- 

signatory on several PIC bank accounts and is listed on PIC correspondence as a 

"manager", "director", or "CEO7' of PIC. Shevchenko is a 50 percent owner of PIC. 

10. Premium Income Corp. is a Wyoming corporation created in January 

2004 with its business address in Seattle, Washington. Since at least May 2004, PIC has 

been marketing an investment program that claims to place investor funds in "covered 

calls9' in the foreign currency exchange market. PIC uses a network of sales persons as 

well as Internet websites to promote these investments. In promoting its programs, PIC 

targets the elderly and persons investing retirement funds. 
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11. Tri-Forex International, Ltd. is an entity that maintains its last known 

business addresses at the same Seattle, Washington locations as PIC. In PIC sales 

literature, Tri-Forex is described as PIC7s parent company and touted as an international 

company with decades of experience trading in the foreign currency markets. Tri-Forex 

purports to be headquartered in London, with offices in Australia and Japan, as well as 

Seattle, Washington. In fact, Tri-Forex is not authorized to conduct business in these 

locations. 

12. Inforex, Ltd. ("Inforex") is a Nevada corporation which lists a "Patrick C. 

Gillarn" as its sole office and director. "Gillam" is an alias previously used by Defendant 

Rogers. Inforex lists its business as currency trading and gives a corporate address in 

Scottsdale, Arizona. In May 2004, Inforex registered to do business in the state of 

Washington at the same business address as Tri-Forex and PIC. Inforex has received 

millions of dollars of PIC investor funds and transferred the funds to Inforex accounts 

located in Switzerland and Denmark. 

GERALD ROGERS: THE MAN BEHIND THE FRAUD 

13. Defendant Rogers is the chief architect of the PIC investment program and 

ultimately controls investor funds. For approximately 40 years, Rogers has been the 

subject of multiple federal and state criminal and civil actions. 

14. Rogers has been the subject of several Commission Complaints. In 1977, 

Rogers was permanently enjoined from violations of the registration and antifraud 

provisions of the federal securities laws by a federal court in California. In 1990, a 

second SEC fraud injunction was entered against Rogers by a federal court in California. 
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15. In 1987, Rogers was convicted by a federal jury of mail and tax fraud 

charges relating to another investment scheme. Rogers, who was free on bond, fled the 

country and was a fugitive for three years, before finally being apprehended in 

Switzerland. Rogers was sentenced to serve 10 years in prison and five additional years 

on parole. 

16. In 1990 in Colorado, Rogers was convicted of mail and securities fraud for 

his role in a gold mine investment scheme that raised more than $70 million from 

thousands of investors. Rogers was sentenced to a 25-year term of imprisonment to be 

served consecutively with the California sentence. Rogers was released on parole in 

January 2004. 

17. In January 1993, a California federal court enjoined Rogers at the request 

of the Commodity Future Trading Commission ("CFTC"). In the CFTC action, as in this 

one, Rogers was the principal of an entity that purported to effectuate covered call 

options on deposits of five or ten years, this time in the European precious metal market. 

18. In addition to these federal actions, Rogers has been the subject of 

multiple state criminal proceedings and at least 11 cease and desist and prohibition orders 

by eight different states. In addition, although Rogers, who resides in Washington state, 

was not named as a party, the Texas State Securities Board ("TSSB") recently issued a 

cease and desist order against the operations of PIC in the state of Texas. 
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THE FRAUDULENT SCHEME 


A. The Investment 

19. Under the direction of Rogers and Shevchenko, PIC has raised 

approximately $8.5 million since January 2004, from over 100 investors in at least 6 

states, including at least 58 Texas residents. 

20. In January 2004, Rogers walked away from the Tucson Federal 

Correctional Facility after being granted parole. However, Rogers actually began laying 

the groundwork for the PIC fraud while he was still incarcerated, using an apparent alias 

and a fraudulent Arizona driver's license to create Defendant Inforex, Ltd. The same 

month Rogers stepped from behind prison walls, he incorporated PIC in Wyoming. 

21. By February 2004, Rogers opened the first PIC bank account and began 

accepting investor funds while living in Arizona. Shortly thereafter, he moved to Seattle, 

Washington, moving the operations of PIC with him. 

22. PIC aggressively solicits investments, purportedly for a foreign currency 

trading program, through a network of more than 100 agents, mass mailings, investment 

seminars and an Internet website. The invitation to a Dallas, Texas PIC investment 

seminar described the investment opportunity as being appropriate for persons who are 

"50 years of age and older and are either retired or contemplating retirement." 

23. The firm's website and promotional materials describe the investment 

program as involving the writing (or selling) of "Covered Currency Calls" on the 

currencies of various nations. Investors are told that PIC investments are comparable to 

bank CDs and Government bonds and provide "guaranteed income" with "guaranteed 
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locked-in-profits." Investors are also told that the company never places investor deposits 

at risk, thereby offering the "safety," "earnings" and "liquidity" required by "all 

conservative investors." 

24. In fact, PIC established a mechanism to permit investors to make PIC 

investments with Individual Retirement Accounts ("IRAs"), and supplied brokers with 

the requisite forms to facilitate these transactions. 

25. Moreover, PIC and its sales agents encourage investors to utilize home 

equity loans to obtain investment funds, and PIC pays brokers additional commissions 

when they convince investors to extract the equity from their homes. 

26. PIC and its sales agents assure investors that the investment is entirely 

passive, and that investors can rely entirely on the efforts and expertise of PIC and Tri-

Forex. 

27. PIC'S offering materials represent that its ability to conduct foreign 

currency transactions is facilitated by an exclusive licensing agreement with Union Bank 

1nter.net ("UBI"), which PIC describes as a bank domiciled in Switzerland and wholly 

owned by "Churchill Bank Group serving in the United Kingdom with facilities in 

England, Denmark, Australia, Japan and elsewhere." Rogers has represented that funds 

sent to Europe for foreign currency trading are deposited in an account at UBI in 

Switzerland. Investors and potential investors are referred to a UBI website for 

additional information. 

28. PIC investors are also assured that the company's brokers do not receive a 

percentage of investor funds, but rather are compensated only through the proceeds of the 

foreign currency transactions. PIC offering materials state that the covered calls involve 
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"no brokerage fees" and "no commissions," and that 100 percent of the investor's deposit 

is dedicated to the covered call. Brokers, on the other hand, are purportedly to be 

compensated with a "small bidask spread" paid by the call buyer, not the investor. 

29. The website claims that investor funds are placed with Tri-Forex, which 

writes a covered call option in $1,000 increments equal to the amount of an investor's 

deposit. PIC offering materials state that PIC is the USA division of Tri-Forex 

International, Ltd., a company purportedly located in London, England, with other 

international offices. Investors are told that Tri-Forex has more than 40 years of 

experience "writing international currency calls through its international network of 

currency exchange brokers." 

30. At the time of the initial investment, the investor selects one of three 

option expiration dates: 90 days, 60 months, or 120 months. Investors are promised 

monthly "premiums" paid by the purchasers of the covered calls. 

31. The website claims that the current premium being paid by a call 

purchaser is 2% for a 90-day call (equal to 8% per annum), 10% per annum for a 60- 

month call, and 12% per annum for a 120- month call. Investors who select the 60 or 120 

month expiration dates have the option of either receiving their premiums periodically or 

adding their premiums to their principal investment. 

32. PIC also offers a 120-month "value added" currency call ("VAC") with an 

annual return of 14.2%. The VAC is written with a strike price equal to 110% of the 

investor's deposit, and if the VAC is left to the expiration date, in addition to receiving 

1% per month on the 1 10% strike price, investors will be paid an additional 10% on their 

initial "deposit." PIC doesn't disclose how or from where the additional 10% is derived. 
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PIC does, however, market the "value added" aspect of the VAC as a means to counteract 

any penalties that result from liquidating an "annuity or real estate contract." 

33. All investor funds make their way to accounts in Seattle, Washington, 

controlled by Rogers and Shevchenko. Funds are initially deposited in a Premium 

Income Account at Asia Europe American Bank on which Shevchenko is the sole 

signatory. Shevchenko then transfers the funds to an account at the same bank for which 

Rogers is the sole signatory. Rogers then wires funds to accounts in Europe under his 

exclusive control. 

B. Misrepresentations and Omissions 

34. The PIC investment program is completely bogus. The offer and sale of 

the PIC securities is rife with false and misleading statements and failure to disclose 

material facts, including those set forth in paragraphs 35 through 46 below. 

1. Returns and Safety 

35. PIC literature and brokers entice investors with the promise that the stream 

of premiums from covered calls offer "complete safety" and "guaranteed returns." In 

fact, these blanket assurances are inconsistent with the facts relating to the foreign 

currency transactions described by PIC. 

' 36. Covered calls involve substantial risk and cannot produce a guaranteed 

rate of return. As a covered call requires the purchase and sale of foreign currencies in 

the client's account, the value of the investor's deposit will decline in value if the 

currency purchased with investor funds declines. Moreover, the potential decline in 

principal poses the risk of a decline in the premiums that the customers deposit will 

demand. Accordingly, the entire investor deposit is at risk. 
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2. Use of Funds 

37. PIC represents that 100 percent of investor funds are transferred to 

European banks and used in cover call transactions in the foreign currency markets. In 

fact, PIC does not use investor funds as represented. 

38. First, although customer fimds are initially deposited in bank accounts in 

the name of PIC, Defendants do not disclose to investors that their funds are immediately 

transferred fiom these PIC accounts to a domestic bank account in the name of Inforex, 

under the sole control of Rogers, and then transferred to offshore accounts also controlled 

solely by Rogers. 

39. Second, the PIC program is operating as a Ponzi scheme. PIC has 

collected approximately $8.5 million from investors between May 2004 and February 

2005. Nearly $7 million of these investor funds have been wired offshore to accounts in 

the name of Inforex. Monthly "returns" of at least $267,000 have been paid to investors 

from the PIC accounts. Significantly, however, there is no indication that any funds have 

been transferred back from Europe into PIC-related accounts. Accordingly, the investor 

"returns" paid by PIC are, in fact, being paid with funds provided by other investors. 

40. Third, PIC promises that no investor funds are diverted to pay broker 

commissions, but rather that brokers are compensated through the "bidlask spread" paid 

by the call seller. In fact, PIC brokers receive substantial commissions which are paid 

directly from the funds collected from PIC investors. PIC brokers receive basic 

commissions equal to 10 percent of the gross amount collected fiom clients investing in 

the 60 month and 120 month programs. They receive commissions equal to % of a 

percent on 90 day calls, with an additional % percent each time the investment is renewed 
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for an additional 90 days. In addition, a broker receives a 1 percent override on the funds 

invested through any broker that he has recruited. These commissions are paid out of 

investor funds, not the proceeds of overseas transactions. 

41. Finally, Rogers and Shevchenko, among others affiliated with PIC, are 

misappropriating some or all of the investor funds that remain after PIC makes Ponzi 

payments to investors and pays commissions to brokers. As set forth above, Defendants 

are not placing these funds in profit-producing transactions nor have they returned any 

funds to the United States; accordingly, Defendants have absconded with these investor 

funds. Moreover, the account records demonstrate that investor funds have been used to 

pay for Rogers' personal and business expenses. 

3. Relationship with UBI 

42. Defendants tout their relationship with UBI, described as an international 

bank domiciled in Switzerland, as a crucial component of PIC'S ability to successfully 

facilitate foreign currency transactions. In fact, UBI is not physically located in 

Switzerland and is not registered with the Swiss Federal Banking Commission, as 

required by Swiss law. Moreover, neither UBI nor the Churchill Bank Group is listed as 

a bank or authorized to do business in the United Kingdom, England or Australia. The 

UBI business address in Scotland provided by Defendants is, in fact, a residential 

apartment address unrelated to any business operations of UBI. 

43. Furthermore, the UBI website to which investors are referred is not 

affiliated with a European entity, but rather is registered to a business located in 

Scottsdale, Arizona and is paid for by credit cards in the name of Rogers and Inforex. 
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44. Finally, contrary to representations made by Rogers, funds transferred to 

Europe were never deposited at UBI bank. 

4. Tri-Forex 

45. Defendants' representations about the international scope of Tri-Forex are 

false. Contrary to Defendants' statements, Tri-Forex has no registered business address 

and is not authorized to conduct business in London, England, Sydney, Australia or 

Seattle. 

5. Role of Rogers and Inforex 

46. As set forth above, PIC sales literature emphasizes the long history of 

honesty and integrity of PIC'S parent company, Tri-Forex. Investors, however, are never 

told that the entire scheme is concocted and controlled by Rogers, a securities fraud 

recidivist and convicted felon still on parole. Moreover, Rogers' and Inforex's role in 

controlling investor funds is never disclosed to investors or potential investors. 

C. The Increasing Threat to the Investing Public 

47. The PIC scheme presents an increasing threat to the investing public. In 

mid-February, PIC increased its potential investor pool by qualifymg as a vehicle for the 

investment of IRA funds. In addition, PIC recently began an entirely new campaign to 

encourage investors to seek home equity loans for the purpose of placing money in the PIC 

foreign currency programs. 

48. Defendants have not abated their activities in spite of regulatory action 

already directed at the PIC scheme. On February 3, 2005, the TSSB issued a cease and 

desist order requiring sales agents in Texas to halt the offer and sale of PIC securities. In 

Complaint 
SEC v. Premium Income Corp., et al. 



response to ths  development, Rogers instructed PIC brokers that they should continue with 

"business as usual in the other 49 states." 

49. In fact, the PIC scheme is expanding at an alarming rate. Over $2.4 million 

was deposited with PIC in the first 24 days of February, a more than three-fold increase over 

the deposits made in any prior month. 
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FIRST CLAIM 
Violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act 

[As to All Defendants] 

50. Plaintiff Commission repeats and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 49 of 

this Complaint by reference as if set forth verbatim. 

51. The Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert with others, in 

connection with the offer or sale of securities, by use of the means and instrumentalities 

of interstate commerce and by use of the mails have: (a) employed devices, schemes and 

artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state 

material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the 

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and (c) engaged in acts, 

practices and courses of business which operate as a fraud and deceit upon purchasers, 
-

prospective purchasers and other persons. 

52. As a part of and in furtherance of their scheme, the Defendants, directly 

and indirectly, prepared, disseminated or used contracts, written offering documents, 

promotional materials, investor and other correspondence, and oral presentations, which 

contained untrue statements of material facts and misrepresentations of material facts, 

and which omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, 

in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, including, but 

not limited to, those set forth in Paragraphs 1 through 49 above. 

53.  With respect to violations of Sections 17(a)(2) and (3) of the Securities 

Act, the Defendants were negligent in their actions regarding the representations and 

omissions alleged herein. With respect to violations of Section l7(a)(l) of the Securities 
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Act, the Defendants made the above-referenced misrepresentations and omissions 

knowingly or with severe recklessness regarding the truth. 

54. By reason of the foregoing, the Defendants have violated and, unless 

enjoined, will continue to violate Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 9 77q(a)]. 

SECOND CLAIM 
Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 

[As to All Defendants] 

55. Plaintiff Commission repeats and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 49 of 

this Complaint by reference as if set forth verbatim. 

56. The Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert with others, in 

connection with the purchase or sale of securities, by use of the means and 

instrumentalities of interstate commerce and by use of the mails have: (a) employed 

devices, schemes and artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue statements of material facts 

and omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in 

light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and (c) engaged 

in acts, practices and courses of business which operate as a fraud and deceit upon 

purchasers, prospective purchasers and other persons. 

57. As a part of and in furtherance of their scheme, the Defendants, directly 

and indirectly, prepared, disseminated or used contracts, written offering documents, 

promotional materials, investor and other correspondence, and oral presentations, which 

contained untrue statements of material facts and misrepresentations of material facts, 

and which omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, 

in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, including, but 

not limited to, those set forth in Paragraphs 1 through 49 above. 
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58. The Defendants made the above-referenced misrepresentations and 

omissions knowingly or with severe recklessness regarding the truth. 

59. By reason of the foregoing, the Defendants violated and, unless enjoined, 

will continue to violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 5 78j(b)] and Rule 

lob-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. 5 240.10b-51. 

THIRD CLAIM 
Violations of Section 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act 

[As to All Defendants] 

60. Plaintiff Commission repeats and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 49 of 

this Complaint by reference as if set forth verbatim. 

61. Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly and in concert with others, have 

been offering to sell, selling and delivering after sale, certain securities, and have been, 

directly and indirectly: (a) making use of the means and instruments of transportation and 

communication in interstate commerce and of the mails to sell securities, through the use 

of written contracts, offering documents and otherwise; (b) carrying and causing to be 

carried through the mails and in interstate commerce by the means and instruments of 

transportation, such securities for the purpose of sale and for delivery after sale; and (c) 

making use of the means or instruments of transportation and communication in interstate 

commerce and of the mails to offer to sell such securities. 

62. As described in paragraphs 1 through 49, the PIC investments described in 

detail herein, have been offered and sold to the public through a general solicitation of 

investors. No registration statements were ever filed with the Commission or otherwise 

in effect with respect to these securities. 
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63. By reason of the foregoing, the Defendants have violated and, unless 

enjoined, will continue to violate Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 

55 77e(a) and 77e(c)]. 

RELIEF REQUESTED 

Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court: 

I. 

Temporarily, preliminarily and permanently enjoin all Defendants from violating 

Sections 5(a), 5(c), and 17(a) of the Securities Act and Section 10(b) of the Exchange 

Act, and Rule 1 Ob-5 thereunder. 

11. 

Enter an Order instanter freezing the assets of all Defendants and directing that all 

financial or depository institutions comply with the Court's Order. Furthermore, order 

instanter that Defendants repatriate any hnds held at any bank or other financial institution 

not subject to the jurisdiction of the Court, and that they direct the deposit of such hnds as 

directed by the Court, pending conclusion of this matter. 

111. 

Order instanter that Defendants shall file with the Court and serve upon Plaintiff 

Commission, no later than 72 hours before the preliminary injunction hearing, an 

accounting, under oath, detailing all of their assets and all funds or other assets received 

from investors and from one another. 

IV. 

Order instanter that Defendants be restrained and enjoined from destroying, 

removing, mutilating, altering, concealing or disposing of, in any manner, any of their books 
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and records or documents relating to the matters set forth in the Complaint, or the books and 

records and such documents of any entities under their control, until further order of the 

Court. 

v. 

Order instanter the appointment of a receiver pendente lite over Defendants, for 

the benefit of PIC investors, to marshal, conserve, protect and hold funds and assets 

obtained by the defendants and their agents, co-conspirators and others involved in this 

scheme, wherever such assets may be found, or, with the approval of the Court, dispose 

of any wasting asset in accordance with the application and proposed order provided 

herewith. 

VI. 

Order that the parties may commence discovery immediately, and that notice 

periods be shortened to permit the parties to require production of documents, or the 

deposition of any party or party-representative, on 72 hours notice. 

VII. 

Order the Defendants to disgorge an amount equal to the funds and benefits they 

obtained illegally as a result of the violations alleged herein, plus prejudgment interest on 

that amount. 

VIII. 

Order civil penalties against the Defendants pursuant to Section 20(d) of the 

Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 9 77t(d)], and Section 21(d) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. tj 

78u(d)], for the violations alleged herein. 
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IX. 

Order instanter that Defendants surrender their passports to the Clerk of this 

Court, to hold until further order of this Court. 

X. 

Order such further relief as this Court may deem just and proper. 

For the Commission, by its attorneys: 

Dated: March 2,2005 Respectfully submitted, 

SECURITIES & EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 
801 Cherry Street, Suite 1900 
Fort Worth, Texas 76 102 
(817) 978-382 11-6452 
FAX: (817) 978-4927 
Nonisj @sec.gov 

Of Counsel: 

Spencer C. Barasch, Washington, D.C. Bar No. 388886 
Stephen Webster, Texas Bar No. 21053700 
Eric Werner, Texas Bar No. 24033919 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
Fort Worth District Office 
801 Cherry Street, 19th lo or 
Fort Worth, TX 76102-6882 
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